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CHAIR MOLINA: ... (gavel). .. The Committee of the Whole meeting for October 4, 2005 is now in session.
For the record, we have in attendance the Vice-Chair of the Committee, Dain Kane; Committee
Members Riki Hokama, Danny Mateo, Joseph Pontanilla, Charmaine Tavares, and Bob Carroll.
Excused are Members Michelle Anderson and Jo Anne Johnson.
Members, we have five items for discussion today. If there are no objections, the Chair would like to
take up the last item listed on your agenda, Committee of the Whole Item 19, the State Fire Code, first
because we do have one or two Members that have some other commitments later today. So if there are
no objections, the Chair would like to first take that matter up. Any objections?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you very much, Members. Then we'll proceed ... after that item is done then we
will go back to the items that have been scheduled on the agenda as ordered.
We have also in attendance the Committee Staff, Legislative Analyst, Richelle Kawasaki-Lu, as well as
Shelly Espeleta, and Committee Secretary, Clarita Balala, and from the Corporation Counsel's Office
we have Mr. J.D. Kim.
The Chair at this point will entertain anyone from the public who would like to testify on our items
today. Before we entertain any public testimony, the Chair would like to go over a few ground rules.
You'll be given three minutes to testify with a minute to conclude and please tum off all cell phones and
pagers so as not to cause any disturbance to our meeting today. And please state your name and any
organization that you may be representing. If you have not signed up yet at the secretary's desk, please
go ahead and proceed forward and then you can sign up after.
So at this point we do have one gentleman who will testify. We did have one individual who had signed
up to testify but he may be a tad late so the Chair will leave it open for a few more minutes until then.
MS. BALALA: Mr. Stewart is here.
CHAIR MOLINA: Oh, okay. Alright, thank you. Mr. Stewart, you are the person that we were talking about.
Okay, thank you. Proceed, Mr. Stewart .
. . . BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY . ..

MR. STEWART: Good morning. Thank you. My name is Jim Stewart.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: You can adjust that, sir. You can adjust ... there you go.
MR. STEWART: I'm the current President of the Maui Alarm Association and we were here about a month
ago regarding the false alarm issue with the Fire Department. And I'm here to report that we had a
terrific meeting with the Fire Department - the Chief, Val Martin, and his crew, and just have an
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opportunity to talk, hear their concerns, and voice some of our own. It was a very fruitful meeting and I
think the summary of the meeting was basically the two issues that we were concerned about.
The requirement for a Hawaii-based central monitoring station and the non-response to smoke detectors
have been let's say put on hold for a year or at least that's a suggestion that we've come with. And
they've given us an opportunity to do something rather unique which is to directly try to effect the
problem ... the cause of the problem with the false alarm issue. And we've decided that in our industry
the majority reason the smoke detector false alarm other than user error is in fact a dirty smoke detector
because the chamber gets dirty from the red dirt or the, you know, number of other elements and they
need to be cleaned. Right now there is no requirement to do that so with all of our customer base and all
of the other alarm companies on Maui we're going to institute an annual testing and cleaning of all
smoke detectors which I really believe will have a tremendous effect in the false alarm issue. So they're
giving us an opportunity for the next year to do that and with literally probably 15 to 20,000 smoke
detectors on the island that are connected to monitoring companies that should have a profound effect.
So we're excited.
We also made a company policy for the customers who aren't willing to pay the minimum service call to
do that. We're gonna provide that service at no cost because we feel like that's our contribution to the
false alarm issue and to try to reduce the effect it has on the Fire Department. So very good meeting.
We're going to work with the Department on a quarterly basis to assess the numbers of false alarms to
show that they've actually reduced and if for some reason after a year we haven't done it on our own,
then I would expect the Fire Department and the Council will be right here again addressing these two
issues and we'll be starting all over. So we have a golden opportunity to correct our own problem or fix
the problems within our own house, so to speak, and I'm happy to report that.
MR. STEWART: Okay. Thank you very much, Mr. Stewart. Committee Members, any questions for the
testifier? Member Kane.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Chair. Good morning, Mr. Stewart. Thank you for being here.
MR. STEWART: Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: You may not be the person to ask the question, but I'll ask and see what your response
is. Is there going to be an amendment to the existing or the proposed legislation then based on that
meeting that we need to be made aware of?
MR. STEWART: Yes. In fact, I don't know if the verbiage was submitted, but Counsel was present at the
meeting for the County and there was a submitted revision of the proposal and he was going to correct
the legalese, so to speak, and then present that I believe. So, yes, we did correct that and hopefully that
will be to the Council's satisfaction.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Okay. Have you seen the revised bill yourself?
MR. STEWART: I haven't seen anything since our last meeting a few weeks ago.
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VICE-CHAIR KANE: So your testimony is you ... are on behalf of the association supportive of what you
folks sent in as proposed changes and as long as those are consistent with what is being put to us this
morning, you folks are in support of the Fire Code, as revised.
MR. STEWART: Exactly. Our biggest ... biggest affirmation here was to say that we're appreciative of the
Fire Department for meeting with us. We spent over an hour together, discussed every manageable
issue, and in the end, both the Alarm Association representing all of the alarm companies on Maui, and
the Chief, and Val Martin and others agreed that this was the best approach for the next year. And so if
the Council finds that acceptable to your proposed amendment, then we certainly do as well.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Stewart. Chair, thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Member Kane. Any other questions for the testifier? If not, thank you,
Mr. Stewart. Is there anyone else in the gallery that wants to testify on any of our agenda items for
today? Okay. Seeing none. At this point, Members, if there are no objections, the Chair will close
public testimony on our agenda items for today.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you very much. So ordered.

. . . END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY . ..
CHAIR MOLINA: Let us proceed with Item No. 19, State Fire Code.
COW-19

STATE FIRE CODE

(C.c. No. 05-90)

CHAIR MOLINA: Committee is in receipt of the following County Communication No. 05-90 from the Fire
Chief, transmitting a proposed bill to adopt the State Fire Code and modifications. The correspondence
dated August 18, 2005 from the Corporation Counsel's Office, transmitted a revised proposed bill
entitled "A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING THE STATE FIRE CODE, WITH CERTAIN
AMENDMENTS THERETO" and purpose of today's matter dealing with this is to adopt the revised
proposed bill which is the State Fire Code with modifications made to it.
And we have from the Fire Department joining us, we have Chief Carl Kaupalolo, as well as Captain
Val Martin, and Lieutenant Scott English. Good morning, gentlemen. Okay. At this point, the Chair
would like to ask Mr. Kim to give us an overview of the matter and after-MR. KIM: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR MOLINA: --that we'll entertain questions from the Committee.
MR. KIM: From our last meeting and with respect to Mr. Stewart's comments, we did meet and we did change
or amend the Code ... proposed Code, as requested by the industry, and that would be seen on Page 23,
Section ... Subsection 1007.3.3.61.
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CHAIR MOLINA: Members, the date of the bill is October 3rd
information.

..•

cover letter October 3, 2005 for your

VICE-CHAIR KANE: Last item.
CHAIR MOLINA: Last item in your binder.
MR. KIM: And this language was submitted to the industry for their review couple of months ago.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Mr. Kim, any other comments before I entertain questions from the Committee?
MR. KIM: The only other change was to take out all the fees and put them into a schedule. There was a
problem that I had in drafting the correct language with respect to the revolving fund that's in your Code
on Page 5 and that needs to be addressed, and probably massaged and worked on prior to the adoption of
the Code.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Kim. Member Kane, you had a question?
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Yeah. And just for clarity on the Page 23, Item 1007.3.3.6.1, was this area where the
language is being deleted ... the Hawaii-based?
MR. KIM: That's correct.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Okay. And I only ask that because it doesn't seem like this is Ramseyered in. So
because this is a revision you're actually bracketing out what was removed and how it was changed.
We're looking at corrected language but we're not seeing the actual correction itself.
MR. KIM: What occurred was a repeal of the ... what is proposed is a repeal of the current ordinance and the
State Code. On our first draft, the industry balked at what we had and so I was to understand that
because this is a repeal and this is just a replacement of the whole Code, we didn't need ... need not on
the first draft show what was taken out.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Okay. And then for Mr. Stewart's comments earlier regarding the annual ... for, for
the one year and then coming back, is that language ... at the last sentence, all existing systems shall be
in compliance with this section within one year of the code adoption. Is that relevant? Or... I
understood Mr. Stewart as saying that the agreement was that we're going to be coming back in a year to
take care of something.
MR. KIM: At the meeting ...
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Can you provide comments, Mr. Kim?
MR. KIM: Yeah. At the meeting we decided that we would give the industry a year. So the language was
changed on the second to the last sentence, when the owner of an R-3 occupancy, single-family dwelling
-5-

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE
Council of the County of Maui

October 4, 2005

voluntarily has the fire alarm system monitored by central or remote stations, such systems shall meet
the requirements on NFP A 70, National Electric Code, and NFP A 72, National Fire Alarm Code. That
was the section that was changed with respect to the Hawaii-based monitoring system.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Okay.
MR. KIM: And shall be, and this was added, "and shall be constantly monitored for trouble and supervisory
signals and shall be tested annually and cleaned, if necessary, on or before the anniversary date of the
original installation by qualified and licensed service personnel. All existing systems shall be in
compliance with this section within one year of the code ... of adoption."
VICE-CHAIR KANE: And because I'm not seeing Mr. Stewart stand up and wave his arms, I'm assuming that
they are agreeable to this language and that-MR. KIM: Yes, yes.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: --they're supportive of it. Okay. Mr. Chair, thank you and again questions were just to
... because it wasn't Ramseyered I wanted to be clear on what was provided to us. Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Member Kane. Any other questions for the Corporation Counsel?
Seeing none. ChiefKaupalolo, do you have any comments to make on behalf of the Fire Department?
MR. KAUP ALOLO: Thank you, Chair. Good morning, Members of the Committee. Actually, I have really
no comment. I think Mr. Stewart and Mr. Kim has pretty much spoke eloquently on what we need to
... the work of the morning. So, ifnot, Chair, I thank you for the opportunity.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Chief. Committee Members, any questions for Chief Kaupalolo? Member
Kane.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Oh, no. Again, for Mr. Kim, I'm sorry.
CHAIR MOLINA: Oh, okay. Proceed.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: And if you can reiterate the second point he made about number ... on Page 5-CHAIR MOLINA: Page 5.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: --regarding the scheduling and prior to us passing it out of Committee, what we need to
get accomplished.
CHAIR MOLINA: What kind of work needed?
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Yes.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Mr. Kim.
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MR. KIM: Okay. Beginning with the underlined portion on Page 5, "When a plan or other specifications are
required to be submitted to the chief under Section l32-9, Hawaii Revised Statutes, a plan review fee
shall be paid at the time of submitting plans and specifications for review. The plan review fee shall be
as set forth in the annual budget ordinance and shall be paid prior to the issuance of any building permit.
Where plans are incomplete or are changed so as to require additional plan review, an additional plan
review fee shall be charged as set forth in the annual budget. The chief may authorize an expedited plan
review process provided the applicant pays an additional plan review fee for this purpose. There is
hereby established and created a fund to be known as a plan review, processing, and inspection
revolving fund." The final sentence, "The Chief may authorize the refunding of not more than 50
percent of plan review fee paid when any applicant withdraws or cancels the application before any plan
reviewing is done."
Now what is missing is the parameters of the revolving fund, what it can be spent for and what it can be
used for, and that was deleted inadvertently by myself. I should have left it in. I could put it back in or
if the Members want that ... I don't know how this is used, whether or not the revolving fund is actually
needed, go into the General Fund, these inspection fees, and then appropriated during the Budget time.
However, we need to get a budget amendment because once the ... once we repeal the current Code,
there's no authority to charge any fees or permits or licenses because they're reflected in the Budget as
just an adoption of the Fire Code. If you look at this year's Budget, you will see that there's a
incorporation of the current Code into that. So what was asked by some of the Members is to remove
that sort of thing and to put in a schedule of fees and permit fees and licenses as well as to reflect this
revolving fund, and I inartfully drafted this section.
CHAIR MOLINA: Mr. Kim, could I add in before I continue with their line of questioning from Member
Kane. As for clarification, we sent out an August 15,2005 letter. On behalf of the Committee it states,
remove references to the appropriation of the fees collected under the plan review, processing, and
inspection revolving fund on Page 5, Section 103.3.2.1. Would it be appropriate then on Page 5 to take
out that sentence where it says, "there is hereby established and created a fund to be known as the plan
review, processing, and inspection revolving fund", because I believe this is a request made by the
Committee back then.
MR. KIM: That's correct. I can just take out that last sentence and submit this Code with that correction.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Member Kane.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: No, thank you for that question, Chair. I appreciate that. My line of questioning may
go off on a different tangent but it's related to these paragraphs ... to this underlying area. For plans
that are incomplete or are changed as to the required additional plan review, an additional plan review
may be charged, and the Chief may authorize an expedited plan review process provided applicant pays
an additional plan review fee. So help me understand that and maybe this question to Mr. Kim or even
to the Chief since he would have this authority, Chair. It's almost as if saying and I may be taking it the
wrong way so help me understand it. If you get the money to pay to move things along, you can cut in
front of somebody who no mo the money who can move things along.
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MR. KIM: That's what it appears the language ... the existing language says.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: So is that sound policy? I mean is that something that we should be condoning? It's
like you get money, you can move in the front the line, you no mo money, you gotta just gotta go
through the process and if the stack is this high, then the guy who get money stay over here, he like
move to the top, going move everybody down. And I'm just ... obviously, I'm exaggerating but just to
make the point, you know, because we don't know when the stack going be that high or if it's always
going to be one or two. You know, going through the process in this Division of the Department and I
know the Chief has talked about this throughout the years ... that you guys got a lot of work over there.
So I mean is this the route that we want to consider taking as far as you get money, you can move to the
front of the line, you no mo money, you gotta wait like everybody else. That's something that I have
just it's a policy kinda like ho, is that something that I want to adopt or support. So is that ... but that's
what it's saying, yeah, Mr. Kim?
MR. KIM: That's correct. Current ordinance also says that. So I don't know what the policy is of that
Division that conducts these inspections and review so I would have to tum this over to the Chief or
Lieutenant English.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Yeah. I don't know if, Chief, you have any comments, and again I haven't drawn a
conclusion but it's just an observation.
MR. KAUPALOLO: I thank you. Chair, if we may, I'd like to have Captain Martin shed some light on this.
CHAIR MOLINA: Proceed.
MR. MARTIN: Good morning, Chair, Members of the Committee. That is existing wording like Mr. Kim
noted and I can't recall us using that or charging an extra fee. What happens usually is if someone
comes in especially with a big project, deadlines are set, plan come in, gets reviewed, gets approved for
some reason by our office or disapproved, but for whatever reason the inspector goes out, finds
something, it comes back and it needs to be reviewed, major changes were made. It's hard and I guess
that wording was put in ... now do we have this person go back to the end of the line behind everyone
else or do we help and service the person to help expedite, deadlines need to be met, the facility or
whatever project is almost done, that would to me be the most prudent thing to do. But then again,
having a plan that's incomplete that needs corrections, should the rest of the applicants suffer that's
behind and wait for this person to have their plans completed. And I can't recall and Lieutenant English
can verify, but we haven't been collecting any money to expedite any plans. So we have it in there now.
It's not a problem. Again, we haven't been ... we assist with the plans as much as we can and it's a last
resort issue. You know, if we were to ever use it, it would be at a last resort.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Mr. Chair, and just final to wrap up. So historically, just to be clear, historically, you
folks haven't had to do and not about the fee part, but the actual scenario or the situation, have you folks
been in and I know Lieutenant English has been, and Captain, you folks have been doing this for some
time, your folks opinion is basically that this is not a situation that is common. It's very uncommon and
if it were to arise, that it wouldn't be to such a point where people who are waiting don't get stuck
waiting a lot longer. Again, it comes back to the manpower issue, yeah, in my mind. It comes back to
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you only get two hands or you only get four hands and you get the stack. And so somebody paying
money coming up to the top because they want to move things along 'cause they got deadlines. But it's
all relative. We all have deadlines. We all like move on in our lives, whether you the one individual
guy or you the big project guy. And that's where my, you know, that's where I'm kind of going with
that. So the language not going hold me up for this whole thing but I just . . . from a principled
standpoint I get hard time with that part. And so if you can assure me and maybe to the Committee that
that's not a scenario that is frequent, in fact, it's rare, if ever, then, you know, I would feel comfortable
with moving this because this would be like the last tool in the box, so to speak, to use ... to help things
move along. But if they ask for that, they would have to pay the extra fee for it. And that's what it is,
yeah, paying the extra fee? Captain?
MR. MARTIN: Yeah. Mr. Kane, I'm from the same thought as you. I do not feel that someone with money
should have their plans expedited to come up. If you're coming in for your first initial review, we keep
as much as possible everything in order. We understand deadlines. You know, we hear stories all the
time, people have loans and interest and deadlines need to be met and we try and accommodate to the
best of our ability. And again, very rare, in fact, I cannot recall us ever charging anyone or using this
provision, and if we were to, it would be after the first ... first revision. You know, if down the line, we
already saw the plans and problems are occurring and they want us to expedite it and then in that case,
you know, maybe we'd have a case, and we'd say, well you know what, you want us to re-look at this,
it's going to cost us extra time, we got other people waiting. Probably in that case, it would be
acceptable for them to pay a fee to not necessarily to cut in line because they already waited in line, but
at times we do see plans the completeness from A to Z and if you're gonna submit a plan that's not
thoroughly complete, it's going to take more time for us to do it. In essence, a lot oftimes we do work
that an architect should be doing or, or a draftsman or a licensed engineer should be doing, and we're
catching it and it gets submitted incomplete. It takes us more time, yeah. But again, very rare, and I'm
from the same thought. I don't feel you got money, you should be going to the front of the line, and we
want to make sure that that doesn't happen and that's not the case.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Mr. Chair, to Mr. Kim and trying to understand the order of the language for the Code
and to keep it in context and to follow-up on what Captain Martin just stated, this expedited plan review
process is not during the initial component of the application, but when it's deemed incomplete or there
are changes, that's where the Chief is going to have the authorization for the expedited plan review?
You understand my question? In other words, the way it's placed, it's placed in a sequence, if you will.
There's an initial application fee and then you've listed it in this Code proposal. And then it talks about
where plans are incomplete or are changed, there's gonna be additional fee and then the Chief may
authorize an expedited plan review process provided applicant pays an additional review fee. So my
question is, is it ... does the Chief ... are we giving the Chief authorization from the offset on an initial
plan to have authorization to do an expedition ... expedited process and pay extra or it's only after the
initial plan has been looked at and deemed either incomplete or there's major changes then he's
provided that authorization?
MR. KIM: Well, because it's set off in a separate paragraph, it can be read in that manner that the Chief can
authorize an expedited plan review fee. Where your scenario is that people who have money can cut in
line in front of those who are just waiting. Just to let you know that the Chief has not authorized any
plan review ... expedited plan review fees that has not been reflected in the Budget and he doesn't have
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a policy at this point. However, to make it clear we can amend it if that's a concern for this body to set
it off so that if there was an initial plan review, major changes needed to be done, deadlines were being
pushed, and they could pay an additional fee, to get that portion once they've already stood in line.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Chair, thank you and I thank the Committee for their tolerance of my questions.
CHAIR MOLINA: No problem. Thank you for those questions. We have Member Hokama and prior to
Member Hokama's questioning the Chair welcomes Member Anderson to our proceedings this morning.
Okay, Member Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman, if I may follow-up with Mr. Kane's line that he had presented
earlier. I think Mr. Kane brought up a good question on general processing policy, Chairman. I think
most of the times when some type of expedited review occurs in this County, it's normally in the
inspection process whether it be with Fire Department, Zoning Inspectors, DSA Inspectors. Normally,
that's when I've utilized it in the past in my other job, as well as I'm sure others currently request
expedited inspections outside of the normal schedule and that those that request it pay for the service
above and beyond the initial fees that we set forth in the budget, Mr. Chairman. So for this one I would
say I think Mr. Kane brings up a good one in the ... just in the initial plan review process because one
of the original reasons why the Council had enacted a plan review process fee was to help alleviate
bottlenecks in the permit processing program. Maybe, Chairman, we may want to eliminate that in its
entirety and just say that there will not be an expedited review process. But that's just my one comment
on that.
What I wish to give maybe additional comment is what Mr. Kim provided earlier, Chairman, regarding
the revolving fund.
CHAIR MOLINA: Proceed.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I would say one ... he provided us with one option. Maybe another option
we may want to consider since it's already established, Chairman, is just to put in the proposal of the
ordinance language that would defer or delay the sunsetting of the existing language and allow Council
time during the next budget process to come up with the fee schedule and then the appropriate sunset
language because that would also be adopted by ordinance and that way would keep a smooth transition.
It wouldn't be a break in whether or not people will pay for a plan review for naught and allow us, the
Council, to decide whether or not we want to expand the parameters of the use of these funds. In the
meantime, there's no problem that I can see whereby Finance Department cannot continue to keep those
funds in a specified trust and agency account to keep track of all these special monies that we collect as
revenues for this program, Chairman. So that would be my two comments in this area. Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Hokama. Member Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah. Thank you. If we could go back to that point about the expedited
plan review, I note that in the bill that's attached to the February 9th memo, that section that doesn't
appear here states that when plans are incomplete or are changed so as to require additional plan review
an additional plan review fee shall be charged at the rate of $30 per hour. I think that we could solve
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this little situation by putting that sentence back in to the current version and charged at a rate to be set
forth in the budget I think would suffice. I think it will do two things. One, is that it will motivate
people to have perfect plans at their first submittal and secondly, it would provide for perhaps some
overtime or additional work that the department is going to have to do. So if we look at, you know,
whatever the rate is gonna to be, I think it should be at an overtime rate for a ... (change tape) . .. plan
review so that the applicant is preparing as good a plan as they can rather than to get their project in so
that it's in line, and then expect it, oh okay, we're in line but it's got, you know, 45 red marks on it that
have to be re ... have to be addressed or corrected, and then they say, well, they were here before so
they should be able to cut in front of the next person. So that's kind of my thinking on this. I'm glad
Mr. Kane brought that up. But there needs to be an incentive and a disincentive, and to me if we tack on
a rate for re-review after the initial review of this whatever per hour it's gonna be, $30, $40 an hour,
then that becomes incentive I think to the folks out there to make sure that they're really serious about
making their plans as complete as possible. I don't think you've ever seen a perfect plan, right, in your
department? Have you?
MR. MARTIN: A few.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: A few. Okay. But maybe, you know, because there is this rush about
getting your project in line so that it can be heard or looked at and then corne back later and say, you
know, I wanted ... I've already gone through my initial so I should be able to go in front of other
people. I think that this would help the department. It would also help the people who are doing the
designing in the first place. And you know, it's gonna ... if they want to do a general job and get the
project in line, then they're going to pay for it later at X number of dollars per hour that it takes to
re-review their plans. So that's what I would recommend, Mr. Chair, is that we put that sentence back in
and it coincides to where your first underlined paragraph is. Well, actually, you have it there, right?
MR. KIM: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay. So it's already there so I think we can delete that para ... I'm sorry.
I have too many underlines over here. It's already in there. Just if we can remember at the budget time
to look at this fee and if the department will corne up with a fee that's commensurate with what it would
take for overtime work, I think that would be a fair fee to charge for a re-review of a plan. So I would
say, yeah, I would agree with deleting the next paragraph, the Chief may authorize an expedited plan
review. Sorry, I didn't read that, that last part very well. I apologize.
CHAIR MOLINA: No, no apologies needed. So let me just clarify. So from the February I guess 9th version
of the bill, you would like to add that rate of $30 per hour back into ...
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: No.
CHAIR MOLINA: No? You wanted to leave that?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: No.
arnount,--

I missed that you had it in there.
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CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, okay.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: --and that it was going to be in the budget which is fine. I think that's
where it should be.
CHAIR MOLINA: And then you're in favor of also deleting the portion where it says the Chief may authorize
an expedited plan review from-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Right.
CHAIR MOLINA: --this version ofthe bill.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I think also, Mr. Chair, if there is any kind of expedited review I think the
department should come up with some guidelines on prioritization of projects. So that if you had a
public project like a school or a clinic or something like that where there's a great public benefit, that
that's how the priorities should be set. Instead of expedited that there be priorities given to those types
of projects where there is a public interest even if it's a privately operated. Let's say it's a care home.
It's a privately operated care home. There's a waiting list at the hospital for people to go into a care
home, that that to me would be a public interest. The other thing we could look at is a priority or they
could look at priority for affordable housing as another priority. But rather than saying expedited and
they gotta pay extra that the department sets up sort of a guideline as to the priority of projects and those
projects would be able to cut in line and be looked at first. So that would be my only other
recommendation. Okay. Now I had another question for you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Proceed.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: You said it earlier that something about the revolving fund that you could
take it out of here. That would be the next paragraph? Did you say something like that prior-CHAIR MOLINA: Right. Yes, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: --to we got ... getting into the discussion?
CHAIR MOLINA: It was in reference to an August 15 th letter that I'd sent to Mr. Kim and that was requested
by the Committee.
COUNCILMEMBER TAV ARES: If that is removed, then where is the ... where would be the authorization
for that revolving fund?
MS. KAWASAKI: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR MOLINA: Staff.
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MS. KAWASAKI: To clarify, in the August 15 th letter that went out from the Committee, the Committee had
requested that the Corporation Counsel remove references to pre-appropriating that fund. Without preappropriating that fund, it cannot be a revolving fund-CHAIR MOLINA: Right.
MS. KAWASAKI: --because there's no parameters for which they could use the money. And as a result of
that, the paragraph in the underlying section on Page 5, the third paragraph, there is hereby established
and created that revolving fund, that paragraph would have to be removed. So there would be no
revolving fund. But there is existing language up above which indicates that this plan would ... this
permit, I'm sorry, this review fee would be charged and that is one of the things that Corporation
Counsel will have to incorporate into a budget amendment to establish that. It would be one of those
situations where the Administration would approximate how much money they would be receiving
through those reviews. That money would essentially go into the General Fund. The department could
propose to appropriate it in whatever way that they want it to with the approval of the Council.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay. I understand that part now. So it is the choice of either we keep a
revolving fund or we let these fees accrue to the General Fund and then get appropriated through the
budget. Is this the policy that we're looking to for all revolving funds? Because there are several other
revolving funds related to fees collected and used. I think DSA has a revolving fund.
COUNCILMEMBERHOKAMA: We get about 12 ... 17 around there.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah. There's a whole bunch of them. So if this is the direction that we're
going in, then I think we should be consistent throughout the County if this should be the direction. If
not, if we want to keep the revolving fund, I think that the parameters have to go back in as Mr. Hokama
was stating earlier. And also I think with the load that they keep talking about there that their revolving
fund should be set up so that they can plan ... they can pay for additional personnel to do these plan
reviews, and that's similar to-COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: DSA.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: --DSA. I think they have it ... their revolving fund and then there is a
section that limits it to how many personnel can be paid out of that particular fund. So I see that we
have these two ... two kind of choices, yeah? Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Member Tavares. Member Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you, Chairman. This is something that I have ... maybe the other
Members would agree. I kind of started the ball rolling. It is because of my ... how shall I state it,
Mr. Chairman, ... my level of confidence in the expenditures of the various revolving funds. My basic
premise on having the Committee consider this proposal, Chairman, is one, whether or not the
parameters of the current fund still fits the time and the needs. Revolving funds were meant to collect
money and grow every year. It was meant to be used for the basic purposes of its enactment which was
to assist in the building or the plan review process and minimize bottlenecks. When your fund starts
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collecting and growing each year and we don't see expenditures, either we've made the expenditures too
narrow or the fund has outlived its purpose. Maybe we need to review it.
My concern is that because it's pre-appropriated, Chairman, unless during budget review and the Budget
Committee requests updates, we are not told where the money went, how it was spent, what was
achieved, whether or not they made their performance marks or not. We assume ... we assume it was
done according to the wishes of the Council. I take my oversight responsibilities and I think the other
Members of this Committee take it very seriously, Chairman, our oversight responsibilities. I would
rather prefer that they come back and explain to us what they want the money for and to be able to
appropriate the money accordingly then. Either that or find some way or a mechanism that the
departments will come back and justify why they should retain a revolving fund and how they've
administered the program and whether or not they've achieved the parameters as set forth in the
ordinance. Because we will deal with another department, Chairman, on another matter and that will
want and request to raid revolving funds for another purpose, okay, shortly.
So I think maybe it's timely we talk about what will be our policy because I think we need to treat all the
departments fairly and all the revolving funds maybe it's time for a general review. But I don't like that
17 funds can go before an operating Council gets no indication whether or not those funds are being
dealt with properly. We're assuming again, Chairman, we're assuming. So that's my reason why I
would have recommended an annual review to the budget process. See if the fees are correct and like
DSA, Chairman, we even budget for positions to assist the department or the division to accomplish
their tasks. And maybe that's some other things that these funds parameter may need to be reviewed
and allowed for the department to utilize it for their inspections, for their education, including positions
besides supplies and materials, Chairman. So anyway, that's the reason why I've stuck to this position,
Chairman. Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Member Hokama. It's all about I guess accountability. That's the
bottom line, yeah. Members, any other questions? Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chair. I guess this would be for the Chief. At the top of this
section that we're discussion ... discussing it says that when a plan or other specifications are required
to be submitted under Section 132.9, HRS, and then it goes on to talk about the plan review fee. Can
you tell me what the criteria is under 132.9? Is it everything or are there certain exclusions?
CHAIR MOLINA: Chief.
MR. KAUP ALOLO: Chair, I'm not really specific on it. Maybe our Corporation Counsel can help us with
this. I'm not sure.
CHAIR MOLINA: Mr. Kim.
MR. KIM: I'm sorry but I don't do plan reviews. I would turn this over to Lieutenant English.
CHAIR MOLINA: It's a hot potato question you have there, Member Anderson.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: It's the qualifier for all of this and we should know what they require.
MR. KAUP ALOLO: Chair, we'll have Lieutenant English give you I guess an overview of what is required
when he does the plan review-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you.
MR. KAUP ALOLO: --and this should help.
CHAIR MOLINA: Lieutenant English.
MR. ENGLISH: Good morning, Council. I think that section reflects that whenever the State requires the Fire
Department to review permits for approval, then we can reflect on collecting the plan review fee.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: That's a good try, but it's ... I mean a good shot, but it doesn't answer
my question. I want to know what they require. Does everything have to be reviewed for Fire Code
compliance? You know, from a single-family dwelling to a hotel to a commercial building to an
industrial building? I mean is there . . . do you review everything that comes through for building
permit?
MR. ENGLISH: Okay. At the present time, I'm required to review all commercial buildings. That's the only
thing that we collect the plans review fee on. I also review things like private water. As for residential
plans, I don't collect a plans review fee but I just review it because it's off the County's water supply
system and it's all private systems that we review.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Private water systems you review?
MR. ENGLISH: Correct. Whether it be residential or commercial.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: In other words the water system that feeds the ... that services whatever
project it might be. That's what you're reviewing, is the water system itself for fire flow standards and
whatnot?
MR. ENGLISH: Actually, it's the distance from the structure to the hydrants. It's a simple review. You just
gotta follow the guidelines of the Code requires how far the house is away or the building is away from
a fire hydrant. That's all I review as far as the residential private water sector.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: You don't review the residence or the specifications for the building to
make sure that it meets the Fire Code?
MR. ENGLISH: No. I don't do residential. I don't review the building. I just ... the area the building'S
gonna be built and the setback away from the hydrant.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And so then aside from that what you say is a simple review, the only
thing else that you review are commercial buildings?
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MR. ENGLISH: For building pennits, yes, commercial buildings. There's other things reviewed like
subdivisions, but for the building pennit process, yes, commercial buildings and buildings that are on
private water.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And those are the things that would come under the plan review? In other
words you're reviewing their plan specifications prior to the building happening?
MR. ENGLISH: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So are you at a backlog? I mean ...
MR. ENGLISH: At this moment, yes, very backlogged.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: For commercial buildings?
MR. ENGLISH: Yeah. You know, on an average we go through about maybe 800 to 1,000 commercial
pennits a year. For some reason this year like I said, probably six or seven hotels are being built. I
mean, yeah, the backlog on the larger plans are tremendous this year. Our plans review fee reflects how
much money we collected this year. How we can budget for those ... you can't control what's going to
happen next year so it's hard to budget how much we're gonna spend on the plans review fee because
we're not sure what's coming next year. Going back I think the average for the last four or five years is
about maybe like 80,000 a year plans review fee. This year alone we tripled that and the year's not even
over.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So did you triple your time, too?
MR. ENGLISH: I have other people filling in and helping me out.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So ... and then when you say that you review subdivisions, that's just
during the regular subdivision review of all agencies?
MR. ENGLISH: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
specifications.

So it's not necessarily a plan review as far as, you know, building

MR. ENGLISH: Yeah. We just make sure ... I mean the roadways are proper, the turnarounds, hydrant
spacing, waterlines, the fire flow emit to the ... I'm going to say the zone, like it's zoned ag, zoned
residential with certain specs that they need to follow.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Have you ever come across an instance, and I'm just asking, I don't know
that ... I would find it very strange if a commercial building was to use the plan review waiver process.
Does that happen?
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MR. ENGLISH: It still happens. It's ... it kind of gives us ... it kind of slows down the ending part of the
process. It speeds up the beginning process. They can pick up their building permit, start building
tomorrow, but from the time the contractors don't follow through at the end what's required. And like I
say, we have a lot of businesses operating on a plans review waiver that never did got the proper seal
because the developer or the contractor don't follow-up at the end with the proper paperwork.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I'm stunned! We have ... are these commercial operations?
MR. ENGLISH: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: We have commercial operations that never got the proper seal because
they never came in at the end of the plan review waiver and cleared with the County, including you
folks, that they were in compliance with the law?
MR. ENGLISH: Correct. I know DSA, don't quote me on this, maybe three years ago they limited for like one
architect to have only I think eight plan review waivers going at one time so he can clean up the rest.
There wasn't a set guideline when it first came into place so one architect say had 20 projects on a plan
review waiver that they never followed through with. So I'm thinking that three or four years ago they
limit that to a certain amount of plan review waivers that one architect could actually apply for to try get
this plan review waiver in line.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And so if they're operating without a CO, they're in violation of our
County Code. Doesn't DSA follow-up on these people?
MR. ENGLISH: You probably need to-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Ask them.
MR. ENGLISH: --ask them how they ... how they respond on that question.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And so Mr. Corporation Counsel, does this put the County at liability?
Say there was a fire in a commercial building and people were injured and they had never obtained a
CO, a Certificate of Occupancy, to finalize their permit process, and in not completing their process in
receiving a CO, they also avoided review of the Fire Department's ... the Fire Department's review.
Would the County then be held liable if somebody was injured?
MR. KIM: At this point in time, I'm not able to address that issue for you. I don't know what's in the plans
review waiver process. I'm not privy to that information at this point in time.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well, basically the plan review waiver, Mr. Kim, is a process that allows
the applicant to waive prior review by County departments, which is the standard in our County Code, to
go ahead to allow the architect to assume responsibility to make sure that all government requirements
are met. As a licensed architect they know the law. They're taking on the responsibility to make sure
that all the review requirements, all the laws are met without actually having to go through the process
upfront. So this is a way for them to expedite their project. They build the project without having
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County review at all and then at the end of the project, they come in for their Certificate of Occupancy
and that's when the County does the review. And the County would say, oh, wait a minute, you still
need to have a review from the Fire Department or you still need to have a review from another . . .
maybe the Water Department, whatever agency that has oversight on their particular project. So they
waive all of that and say we don't need that review by the County. We want to build ahead and we trust
our architect to make sure that all the laws are met, and then at the very end we come in to get our CO
and they check to make sure that everything was done properly.
Now, he's telling us that they forego that. They don't even come in for the CO. They just build without
any government review at all. So if we have County Code requirements that require that the Fire
Department review to make sure that they meet the Fire Code and they are foregoing that entirely and
never coming in for the CO which would trigger that review, then in my opinion we're opening the
County up to liability. Because if somebody is injured and the County has never approved that building
and, and signed off by way of a Certificate of Occupancy, then I don't see how we can avoid liability.
And you know, just to tag on to that, Mr. Chairman, the reason we have all these codes ... requirements
is to protect the general welfare of the pUblic. And if we're just shining it on because someone ...
someone who has an architect sign off on a plan review waiver, I'm sorry but I don't think government's
being responsible in that regard. And if there are outstanding projects that have not received their CO, I
want to know who they are and I want the County to take action to correct it.
So if you don't feel comfortable responding now, Mr. Kim, I can appreciate that. You need to protect
the County but I'm here to protect the people of the County. And those people who are using
commercial operations that haven't had review from the Fire Department is totally beyond me, and that
the County has not followed up on people who are operating without a Certificate of Occupancy. To
me, Mr. Chair, this tells me we need to get rid of the plan review process altogether because it's being
abused.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Member Anderson. I think you bring up an interesting issue, but I think
needs to be discussed in another committee at another time.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Chair?
CHAIR MOLINA: Member Pontanilla. And Members, I remind you just as much as possible, please stay on
the agenda item for today.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Yeah. I'd just like to respond to Member Anderson's comments in
regards to plan review waivers. The Public Works Committee will be taking up as ... that matter on an
agenda item probably later this month or early next month.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. And my comments again relating to what Member Anderson brought up, we don't
have anybody from DSA to respond. I don't ... although, you know, you have a legitimate concern. So
that's my only reason for trying to keep us on the parameters for what's before us today. But I do
believe you bring up something very interesting that's been shared with the Committee.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Mr. Molina. And I think that this has everything to do with
what we're discussing because we're talking about plan review for Fire Code and it doesn't do us any
good to adopt this language unless we have some follow through from the various departments that are
allowing people to go forward and build without a plan review. So, you know, we can put this in but if
people out there know the ... know the ... know that nobody from DSA is going to follow-up to make
sure that they've got a CO and they just operate without any government oversight at all. I'd like one
more question. Do you folks know if One Main Plaza was built on a plan review waiver and if they
have a CO?
MR. ENGLISH: No. On a plan review basis the cost limit is set at one ... all projects has to be less than
125,000 I think or 120,000. So One Main Plaza could not be built under the plan review waiver because
the cost of the project would exceed the limits.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you for that, Captain Martin [sic]. I forgot about that. That is
reassunng.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Member Anderson. Members, any other questions for the Corporation Counsel
or for the Department? Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman, Page 19, please. Just a question for the department under I guess
hydrant specifications. I noticed the difference of the GPMs between the agriculture and the rural
categories and yet the distance is the same - 500 linear feet. Knowing how we've moved forward with
agricultural subdivisions, is this GPM standard for agriculture, 500, still, still the good number,
Mr. English, or should we make it, you know, equal to rural already and look at 1,000 GPMs?
MR. ENGLISH: Yeah. Thank you, Mr. Hokama. Yeah, I hear your concerns of what's being built in the
agriculture sector. When we did put this language in, all I did was I followed the water standards that
the Water Department has so we're pretty much consistent of what we require in different zone areas.
So right now Water Department was set at 250 before, they bumped it up to 500 gallons a minute. So
basically, I followed their same guidelines to be consistent.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. Would this be regardless of whether or not it's part of ... I mean if
we had one property owner on one five-acre, you know, 500-acre ag lot farming, that's one thing, but if
we had 250 homes on two-acre ag lots, would this work? And more likely wouldn't happen because of
the sliding scale, but you see my point? My point is that we know that agriculture lands has a ...
because of the valuation and everything more than likely this, what, you know, people will be looking at
putting homes in the future because of the pricing and the cost. Knowing that, is this 500 GPM should
be for the ... how we view traditional agriculture practices and if so, should we keep it? Should we
make another agriculture/residential whereby it should be 1,000 GPMs and 500 feet distances as
something more realistic and more safe for the type of subdivisions that could come under that category?
I looking at you as our professional from a public safety standpoint.
MR. ENGLISH: Yeah. Thank you, Mr. Hokama. That makes all the sense in the world. Right now the
projects that I'm working with, West Maui lands, they do give me the bigger lines because I mean my
main concern is big brush fires in that area. They don't give me the minimum. They give me the 8-inch
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line, the 1,000 GPM. Most of the newer subdivisions do work with me and they upsize the lines because
I know what ... they're not building single farm dwellings, they're building estates out there, and if they
give me a 500 gallon a minute of fire flow, we can't do a efficient attack on the structure if it ever did
catch on fire. So most of these newer ones, for the last two years, they have been up sizing the lines to
give me more water out there. So they've been working with me and going over the minimum
requirements.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. Can I take the Lieutenant's comments, Chief, as something that the
Department would stand by and support to . . . a consideration to increase the agriculture gallons per
minute flow, you know, the proposal is 500 which is the existing, yeah?
MR. KAUP ALOLO: I concur that the language we're trying to do is be consistent with the application in
water, not try to be inconsistent ... (change tape) . .. and we're trying to present to the customer a more
consistent, you know, type of fire flow demand for the building. You're correct in being realistic that
we do have structures out there that we do need to look at and see if we do have adequate fire flow out
there. And I think, you know, this is something that Scott just mentioned that he is ... when he reviews
it, he is taking a look at it and seeing that we do upsize the lines if we need to. So, you know, in this day
and age I think it is realistic that, you know, these kinds of housing concerns are out there for us and it
might be prudent for us at this point.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. Let me tell you what I understood you folks to say and I know you
guys want to say it well too. Five hundred gallons per minute more than likely will be able to control a
dwelling fire but will not be able to save the dwelling. You just controlling it and so that it bums down
without endangering more things, but you couldn't save it, not with one 500 GPM.
MR. ENGLISH: Just kind of based on a fire flow cal, a wooden structure building, 1,000 GPM is probably
sufficient for about a 2,800 square foot building. So if 500 GPM, you probably cut that in half to about
maybe 1,400 square foot building.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: And nowadays, more than likely that's average already, yeah, Mr. English?
MR. ENGLISH: Yeah. I mean most buildings, homes going up in these ag lands are in a range of 18 to
probably 2,000 square feet. So it's kind of this right over the borderline for the fire flow.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. I appreciate your ... your responses. Thank you, Chairman. This is
something I'll just want to consider whether or not we ... I might like to propose a revision.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Member Hokama. Member Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Yeah, following up on the GPM for the agricultural side. Yeah, we
know that, you know, we having not only farm dwellings but main dwellings on the agricultural lands
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and I would think that the Fire Department would be the driver for the gallons per minute for public
safety rather than following the Water Department's recommendation. You should be making
recommendations to the Fire ... to the Water Department in regards to the size of the lines that you put
in the subdivision so that you get adequate water to handle fires, you know. That's my two cents that
you should be the driver rather than, you know, taking the recommendation off the Water Department's
numbers in regards to gallons per minute. And if you feel that, you know, it's inadequate, then you
should be working with the Water Department to come up with a really, really good number.
MR. ENGLISH: Yeah. Thank you, Mr. Pontanilla, for that question. Probably go back to Mr. Hokama's
where like I said we probably might have to set some kind of guidelines where these guys they're
subdividing three ... 300-acre lots to actually do some farming or 100 two-acre lots would actually do
more ... more residential kind of living than farming. We probably gotta set some kind of guidelines as
I cannot see enforcing 1,000 gallons a minute for a 3-10t subdivision consisting of 100 acres each.
That's going to be impractical. We're putting hydrants on the road frontage to protect these buildings
versus two-acre lots, 100, I mean 100 two-acre lots. So we may need to work on something and we can
probably amend this later on in the future.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Member Pontanilla. Any other questions for the Chief or Corporation Counsel
at this time? Okay. Seeing none. At this point, the Chair will go ahead and make a recommendation.
Member Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman, I have one more. I just wanted to allow another one. I just have
a question on Page 27, please, Chairman.
CHAIR MOLINA: Proceed.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: This is-CHAIR MOLINA: Members, Page 27.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: --under I guess, General, Open Burning, Section ... so under 27 we have
No.8, Members, which is regarding agricultural fires and the current proposed underscoring would be
they be required to be permitted by the State Department of Health. Does this mean that Maui Fire
Department does no review and that you're ... we're assuming Department ... the State Department of
Health will take care of anything under agricultural or do you have requirements of notification and
comments, like we know our reservoirs are low so I would ask for you to take extra caution or
Upcountry's already in conservation mode so take extra caution or we would recommend deferring
burning till what season or things like that?
CHAIR MOLINA: Proceed, Captain Martin.
MR. MARTIN: Mr. Hokama, what we have ... what we have stated in here is if someone wants to do an
agricultural fire, that they would need to see the State Department of Health and obtain a Clean Air
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Branch Permit. The State does have strict guidelines that also need to be followed. At that point, if the
applicant is awarded a permit, then they would come to the Fire Department and they would work with
us as stated in ... on Page 24, 1102.3.1, and we would work with them on more finer details on how it
would be done, the location, and make sure that everything is done properly. Notification, of course,
which is really important. So we would not be out of the picture. They would need to still contact us
and work with us. The Department of Health does send us an updated list of approved permits, who
possessed the permits, so that we can be updated.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. I just bring this up, Captain, because couple months ago we had that
problem on Lanai at Hale Palaoa. Okay, non-residents ... non-Lanaians call it Club Lanai. We sent our
chopper on a wild goose chase, wasted lot of personnel time, equipment time, and if it was a valid call
out, the potential of us responding timely for an actual case disturbs ... disturbed me. So my thing in
questioning you in this area is, is there something we need to put in our language so that we can help
avoid those future situations and if that continually occurs, you know, we have the penalty portion high
enough to be a very painful experience. Because that's not the first time we do open burning on Lanai,
okay. While there may be new company personnel, the company is old and it knows its responsibilities
and requirements. So any comments?
MR. MARTIN: Our wording for violations ... Administrative violations and so forth is up to a $1,000 per day
and each day is a new occurrence so right now the maximum fee would be $1,000 per violation. And
basically to obtain ... currently, we work well with the State Department of Health Clean Air Branch
here locally and to obtain a permit presently is pretty rigorous and the obligations that need to be met.
And we are comfortable with those requirements and then them having to come to the Fire Department
by following the section in our proposed amendments here that we would be notified and we would
work with them, well, make sure that they have a current water supply, the pile is so large that they
don't use gasoline, wind direction. We would take all that into consideration once we're notified, but
then again, those that go ahead and do it without our knowledge, we don't have control of that and we
find out after the fact. We're always willing to help those that come forward and follow proper
procedures. Again...
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Was that $1,000 fine that they paid sufficient to take care of the costs of the
department for a company to go down, for us to send a helicopter with its crew to fly over the channel?
MR. MARTIN: I don't have the exact figures, Councilmember Hokama, but I think, yeah, I understand ...
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: What's your best ... best guess?
MR. MARTIN: We're looking at it mayor not equate to that $1,000 but it's $1,000 per day that the violation
continues. So there's some factors in there that would be variables for us if it continued on for quite
some time so they probably would be, you know, compensateable [sic]. In this particular case though
we're trying to look at it that if there is some consistency in ... in especially in these kinds of I guess
operations, if there's particular persons, companies that we need to red flag, and I think that's one of the
things we want to do is to try to look at. And if this is something that is ongoing, if it's something
starting to I guess pick up more or is it just a freak occurrence, we also are concerned about that also
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because it takes away our response capabilities and you're, you know, correct on that. If we needed to
respond to a bona fide fire emergency, that certainly would restrict our capabilities somewhat.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:
Chairman.

Okay, Chief, thank you.

Thank you for your comments. Thank you,

CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Member Hokama. Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chair. We all just got a letter from Smith Development and
he brings up a few interesting points of view and one of which I was going to ask about. I've been
through this several times and if I've missed it, I apologize, but is there anything in this bill that we're
being asked to adopt that addresses the width of a cul-de-sac ... the required width of a cul-de-sac for
your purposes?
CHAIR MOLINA: Chief or Captain Martin.
MR. MARTIN: Ms. Anderson, I just got this letter here. I haven't had the chance to read it or digest ... to
digest it so I don't know what's occurring here. The cul-de-sac details ... we use a 40Y2 foot radius in
areas such as Lahaina and Kihei, Central Maui. Some of our other trucks that have a shorter turning
radius we're a little bit more lenient. We have brought that down a little bit less in areas like Hana and
even on Lanai for our turning radius. So we do have a set diameter that we use if ... I don't know if
that answers your question.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Is it anywhere in the Fire Code?
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Eighteen.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Page 18.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Page 18 in this bill?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Dimensions.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And ... I don't see anything in here that addresses cul-de-sac widths, and
you know, the 40-foot radius that you just mentioned is ... you know, when you say a 40-foot radius,
you're saying that's the radius you need in a cul-de-sac, correct?
MR. MARTIN: That's correct, but there are also other options such as putting in hammerhead design so the
fire trucks can reverse. If you can picture that, it doesn't necessarily have to be a cul-de-sac. Maybe
Public Works whose rules are more detailed than what the Fire Department requires would have better
answers, yeah. But as far as cul-de-sacs and the turnarounds, the main thing is for our fire trucks
whenever a roadway is more than 150 feet in length, that we don't have the driver operator need to
reverse a long distance which could be a hazard and that a turnaround is available for apparatus ... for
fire apparatus.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: You know, I think Title 18 actually has a greater radius than 40 for
cul-de-sacs, and of course it's different depending if it's rural or urban and we are going to have ...
yeah, the radius for actually urban, rural, and agriculture in a cul-de-sac is 43 feet for the right-of-way of
which 35 feet needs to be paved. So you are not doing anything more restrictive than what's already in
the County Code?
MR. MARTIN: We don't believe so.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Now, if you had, you know, a short road that had a cul-de-sac at the end
of it, that maybe on the cul-de-sac it served three or four homes off the cul-de-sac, if you were going to
take a fire engine down there on a call, what would be the need to turn around in the cul-de-sac?
Because the engine would be in the middle of the cul-de-sac or on the side of ... either side of the center
and would be able to service any ofthose homes in that cul-de-sac.
MR. MARTIN: In the Fire Code, the provision states 150 feet, yeah. So anytime a roadway is longer than 150
feet we need to provide a turnaround.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. So if the roadway leading into the cul-de-sac, if the straight part of
the road is more than 150 feet, the Fire Code requires you to have the ability to tum around in the
cul-de-sac?
MR. MARTIN: That is correct.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. That is helpful because I don't know if all of you are aware but
there is a growing brouhaha regarding the County's putting up No Parking Signs in cul-de-sacs where
people have had long standing use of the easement surrounding the cul-de-sac ... the County easement
for parking purposes and it seems to be indiscriminate. It's based on if anybody calls in a complaint and
I don't know that safety or the Fire Code has anything to do with it. And it's my understanding that that
issue is coming to the Council for our review because it's angered a lot of people Countywide, people
who have counted on that on-street parking for their guests, their tenants, for ohana units. It's very rare
now that you have one person living in a unit. It usually takes two working people to meet rent in Maui
County now of anything. So there's generally two cars involved and our Code only requires one
off-street parking. So it ... where does it say 150 feet? I just want to be clear on this because I'm
getting a lot of ... lots of complaints about this.
MR. KIM: It's on the Page 127 of the ...
CHAIR MOLINA: Mr. Kim, can you use the microphone, please, for the record.
MR. KIM: I'm sorry. Mr. Chair, the 150 feet appears in the 1997 Uniform Fire Code. What you have before
you are just amendments to this Code.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah, I understand that. What page is it?
MR. KIM: Page 1-27.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. Thank you. I thank you, Mr. Chairman. Thank you, Captain
Martin.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Member Anderson. Committee Members, any other questions before the Chair
... I would like to call for a break and then come back with his recommendation? Seeing none. The
Chair will call for our morning recess. We shall return at 10:35 and your Chair will come back with his
recommendation on this matter. Meeting in recess ... .(gavel). ..

RECESS:

10:233.m.

RECONVENE:

10:373.m.

CHAIR MOLINA: .. .(gavel) . .. Committee of the Whole meeting for August 4,2005 is now back in session.
Thank you very much for that break, Members. At this juncture, the Chair will make his
recommendation on Committee of the Whole Item No. 19 which relates to the Fire Code ... State Fire
Code. The Chair at this point will entertain a motion to support the passage of the October 3, 2005
version of the bill, as revised. Included will be amendments to delete references to the revolving fund
on Page 5, as well as references to the ... to expediting the plan review process which is also included
on Page 5, and the Chair is also open to additional amendments if that is so desired by the Committee.
Is there a second?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Second.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. It's been ... I'm sorry. Is there a motion? .. .(laughter) . .. Excuse me, I'm sorry.
Getting a little ahead of myself. Okay.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Second.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. It's been moved by Member Kane and seconded by Member Tavares. Sorry about
that, Members. Getting a little ahead of myself here. Okay, the motion is on the floor. Member Kane,
as the maker of the motion, you have the floor.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Chair. And first, thank you for that recess, and hopefully, perhaps the
department, as well as Corporation Counsel has had a chance to take a look at that Smith Development
letter and has digested it and perhaps can provide at least some comment specific to . . . and if I've
missed any part of the discussion earlier, I apologize. But if there's anything there that does seem to
create a problem for us, I'd like to just get some brief comment perhaps first by Corporation Counsel
and then from the Chief or his Lieutenant or Captain.
CHAIR MOLINA:
Kaupalolo?

Okay. Thank you, Member Kane.
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MR. KIM: At this time, I have no comments on this letter.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR MOLINA: Member Kane.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: I apologize. Just let me ask a pointed question then.
CHAIR MOLINA: Oh, go ahead.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: The first item is talking about the bill being reviewed by the Subdivision Engineering
Standards Committee because there are proposed changes I guess regarding ... to subdivision standards.
First, is that a correct statement on their part that there are changes being made in this Fire Code
provision?
MR. KIM: As I understand it, the Subdivision Committee is looking at changes for subdivision requirements,
and as such, I believe our Department is still enforcing what they believe to be a standard that would be
acceptable for the Fire Department to provide fire suppression for these subdivisions.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: So in this case where they state that the draft bill includes language that appears to
supersede provisions ... and because we have a motion on the floor I'm just trying to get clarification to
what we ... what, what somebody in the public is pointing out for us. There's no comment there
regarding or providing us comments specifically to Title 18. Are you prepared to respond to some of
those issues that are pointed out in the Item No. 1 and the requirements that are being put forward under
this Fire Code update?
MR. KIM: As to the details, I'm not prepared to answer that. Maybe Lieutenant English may be able to
address that issue.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Lieutenant English.
MR. ENGLISH: Yeah. Thank you, Mr. Kane. I can address some of the issues. On the two areas that we're
gonna be in conflict with Title 18 will be the turning radius on the cuI-de-sacs and the road widths. Title
18 currently has ... as I said the cul-de-sac turning radius of only 35 outside turning radius where our
larger trucks require the 40.5. So for the past three years or four years that's why I've been reviewing
the subdivision so I can enforce our minimum requirement for the Fire Code. Second is the width of the
roads. Our Fire Code requires a minimum 20 feet unobstructed width. That's for fire trucks to park and
emergency evacuation can get around the trucks. On certain cul-de-sacs you may notice that at night
when everyone's home, we lucky we can have one vehicle drive through there. So what we requiring on
the cul-de-sac is to get the road width 32 feet to allow cars to park on each side and we still maintain our
20 feet requirement. That would be the two major conflicts of the Chapter 18 in the Fire Code.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Okay. The other question I have and Mr. Chair, if I may, again I'm just referencing the
letter so just going down the line but I'll skip very briefly because I know Corp. Counsel, you know, at
the request of this body, if this body deems necessary to get an opinion on the conflicts will be handled.
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But the next item talks about the appeal process. Can we briefly touch on what appeal process is located
within this bill and first identifying it so we have a clear idea and address the issue about a better
mechanism regarding this? Is there ... is there something in the Code existing or even with the Fire
Safety Commission as far as providing an appeal process on the Chief s final decision or final call on
something?
MR. KIM: With respect to the appealing the decision, it would have to go to the Board of Variances and
Appeals. The Fire and Public Safety Commission do not review those decisions by the Chief.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: So it is Board of Variances and Appeals?
MR. KIM: That's correct.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: And that process is clearly stated and identified that at any call of the Fire Chief or any
other Director because it gets broader than just with the Chief s decisions, that that can be appealed and
it's clearly stated in our Code?
MR. KIM: Yeah. I was told it was on Page 35.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Okay. I see it in Item No.4, yeah?
MR. KIM: That's correct.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Okay, No.4 we kind of touched on earlier.
MR. KIM: Yeah. So the writer misspoke with respect to going to the-VICE-CHAIR KANE: Yeah.
MR. KIM: --Commission.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: I see that. Thank you. Okay. I'll yield there, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: And I know that other Members have suggested us consider other amendments and I'm
open to the considerations. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you very much, Mr. Kane, and thank you for bringing the matter of this letter up, as
well. It was transmitted to us at 9:50 this morning and I think into our hands maybe about 20 minutes or
so. So I think some of the concerns are, well, interesting but it ... at the same time, to be fair we need
more time to, you know, I guess look into these questions and get some responses as well. So just to
share with the Committee, should this matter pass out of this Committee today, the Chair is open to
sending letters to the various departments included in here I would guess Public Works, Fire
Department, Corp. Counsel, for written responses to some of the concerns brought up here as well. And
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if need be prior to first reading should it pass, the Chair's open to other options as well with the bill. If
the concerns are so great, the Chair is open to even taking this . . . having this recommitted back to
Committee or considering some floor amendments as well prior to first reading if ... should this matter
get there. But anyway, Committee Members any other questions as it relates to the motion on the floor
or amendments? Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chair. You know, regards to this letter from Smith
Development. If the roads are required to be wider in new subdivisions to accommodate the . . . the
equipment that the Fire Department has, then it's our duty, you know, to ... to go with that. We don't
want building contractors or developers to be building subdivisions that ... that can't be serviced by the
fire trucks that we currently use and so I don't really see where the Subdivision Engineering Standards
Committee ... their concern is different than the Fire Department's concern. And you know, this may
put a crimp in people who want to do zero-lot line subdivisions where they want to have very narrow
roads, have everything scaled down to save cost. But in the final analysis, will the people who live there
be safe if there's a fire? Can the Fire Department access the house at the end of the cul-de-sac if the
roadways are not wide enough? I think that takes precedence over anything else. So I feel comfortable
passing on this today. The other concerns I don't see as being necessarily valid, and you know, if these
folks weren't that concerned, we've heard this bill for several months now. There's been plenty of time.
So that's just my two cents. I'm ready to vote.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Member Anderson. You touched on a good point. We did have this matter
first brought to our attention back in early summer I believe. So there has been sufficient time for
people to comment. Thank you. Member Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman, I'm aware of the motion on the floor.
please, for Mr. Kim.

One quick question,

CHAIR MOLINA: Proceed.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I think Item No.2 on the letter from Mr. Goode ... is my understanding
currently that the Code has designated the Public Works Director to deal with conflicts with Title 18 so
that would be still the standing policy of this County? ... (change tape) . ..
MR. KIM: We've had issues with the subdivision requirements and especially the small subdivisions, but
we've been able to work those matters out, speaking on behalf of the department.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you for that comment. Chairman, I've heard your
recommendation regarding the revolving fund. I would say I can be supportive but then what I would
ask ... made prior to my request, is there a reason why the effective date of the proposed ordinance is
scheduled for March 31 st of '06, Mr. Chairman?
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you for that question. I'll ask Corporation Counsel to comment on that date.
MR. KIM: Yes. When we initially proposed the adoption of the Fire Code, I was not able to foresee that once
we repealed the current Fire Code, that current Fire Code had ... was adopted in the budget ordinance.
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Therefore, it was effective as soon as it was adopted. We would have no way of charging fees ...
permit fees or licensing fees. So we need to get a budget ordinance amendment to reflect the current
rates that we can collect. There has been a suggestion that maybe we should put a sunset clause on the
current Code so that it would be effective still and this Code could go forward. Whatever this body
deems necessary or prudent to go forward, we're more than willing to either amend this or try to push
for the budget amendment.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. Mr. Chairman, I would ask you and the other Committee Members
to consider that the effective date of the ordinance be considered to be July 1st of 2006 for the following
maybe reasons, Mr. Chairman. One, until such time whatever is existing will continue on. We've based
our current budget on the various assumptions. Two, it will allow our Budget and Finance Committee
during its upcoming budget review to then have the time to put forth in the budget schedule the
appropriate fees for various items, including those required for the Fire Department, and then I believe
then a good transition since the budget then would take effect July 1st. The Code would ... this new
Fire Code would take effect July 1st. I can see it maybe having a smoother transition as a suggestion for
you, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Hokama. Would you like to frame that as an amendment?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I make that motion to amend, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR MOLINA: Is there a second for the proposed amendment?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Second.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. It's been moved by Member Hokama and seconded by Member Tavares to change
the ordinance effect date from March 31, 2006 to July 1, 2006. Any other discussion or comment as it
relates to the proposed amendment. Member Hokama, if ...
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Happy to relinquish the floor, Chairman.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you. We have Member Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chair. Just for my own curiosity in regards to the
Subdivision Engineering Standards Committee. How much input does the department provide this
Committee in regards to roadways and so forth?
CHAIR MOLINA: Excuse me, Member Pontanilla, prior to a response to your question, we're having
discussion related-COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: I'm sorry.
CHAIR MOLINA: --to the change in the date. Any discussion on the amendment at this point?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Clarification.
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CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: The bill currently says it would become effective March of '06. Is that
what I heard?
MR. KIM: That's correct. It's currently listed and Member Hokama is proposing to change the date to July 1,-COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: July 1st .
MR. KIM: --2006 based on the reasons he gave.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
concerns with that?

Yeah. Would it be appropriate to ask the Fire Chief if he has any

CHAIR MOLINA: Proceed, ChiefKaupalolo.
MR. KAUPALOLO: I'm sorry, Chair. Would you-CHAIR MOLINA: Yeah. Member Anderson, could you restate your question for the Chief?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah. Do you have any problem with the amendment changing the
effective date ofthis proposed bill from March 31 s\ '06 to July 1s\ '06?
MR. KAUP ALOLO: Thank you, Chair. If I may? Ms. Anderson, the Department was hoping that we could
move forward on the adoption of this Code. It would help us to be I guess more current with the
application. If possible, the Department would like to move forward with adopting the Code, if that was
possible by the body. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I'm just wondering why the effective date is March 6 [sic] and not at the
adoption of the bill. Why there was that lag time to begin with.
CHAIR MOLINA: I guess Mr. Kim can respond to Member Anderson's question.
MR. KIM: We anticipated to get a budget amendment and get it done by March 31, 2006 so it could reflect the
current ... the fees ... the current fees and the proposed fees by this change in the Fire Code.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: You know, the ...
MR. KIM: Well, because what we planned to do is to repeal the current Code which as been adopted by the
budget ordinance to reflect the fees that are paid today. So we repeal by adopting this Code and it
becomes effective, then the Department would be left without any provision to charge a permit fee or
inspection fee.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Unless we came forward with a budget amendment?
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MR. KIM: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: You know, Mr. Chair, I have a hard time delaying an issue of safety.
These are all upgrading the code for safety reasons and I have a problem delaying that just because of a
technical issue regarding fees. That's just my opinion, but I'm happy to go along with the body.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you for your comments, Member Anderson. Member Kane.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: I hesitate too and I was comfortable with the movement that is being suggested by the
Department as well as with Corporation Counsel stating their intent of how they would move forward.
However, there's also components of historical behavior that we have not received things on a timely
basis, and therefore, we've been put into a position where it has not occurred in a timely manner, and
therefore, has created a gap in time, which has created a problem. So I think in the end it may be
appropriate for us to move with the amendment and at such time we do receive a budget amendment or
amendment that's proposed that it can be a two-prong approach where it can be sent forward and then
we can always amend this later on since this will be the adopted language in effect that would protect us
from any type of breaks. And if they do proceed with and I would recommend or ask them to consider
still coming forward with what they originally intended to do and if that does come forward in a timely
manner that they want to happen, that they also come forward with the language to adjust this particular
language regarding the date that Mr. Hokama is putting forward. And we can do it coinciding, you
know, together and then move forward and then we can get this done as the Fire Department wishes as it
being done earlier than the July 1st. But I think this is ... for us it protects ... it's gonna protect us from
having any type of breaks. So I agree with Member Anderson, what she's saying, you know, we're
doing a safety thing. The Department wants to move this thing forward and get it updated but this may
be for us a more prudent way of approaching this and asking them to proceed with their intentions of
coming forward with amendments and then we can also amend this language to take it back to wherever
it's going to be the appropriate time when we get there. Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay_ Thank you, Member Kane. Member Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes. I'll ask the Department how far along is the budget amendment?
CHAIR MOLINA: ChiefKaupalolo or Captain Martin.
MR. KIM: I can answer that.
CHAIR MOLINA: Oh, I'm sorry. Mr. Kim.
MR. KIM: Currently, we worked with the former Budget Director to get this ... the fees and schedules
together. We were wrestling with the language for the revolving fund because that will be deleted. We
will need to make the appropriate adjustments to the Fire Department's current budget and then we need
to get direction from the Administration as to who will propose this change.
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay. I agree. We'll go with Mr. Hokama's amendment. I'll support that.
And then if something happens to come up prior to that, then we can always act on it together. Thank
you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Member Tavares. Any other questions as it relates to the motion on the floor
which is to change the effective date of the State Fire Code from March 31, 2006 to July 1, 2006.
Seeing no discussion. All those in favor of the proposed amendment signify by saying aye.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED AYE.
CHAIR MOLINA: All those opposed? Okay. Thank you. Amendment passes unanimously.

VOTE:

AYES:

Councilmembers Anderson, Carroll, Hokama, Mateo, Pontanilla
and Tavares, Vice-Chair Kane, and Chair Molina.

NOES:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

ABSENT:

None.

EXC.:

Councilmember Johnson.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

APPROVE amendment to main motion.

CHAIR MOLINA: We're now back to the bill as revised and amended. Any discussion? Member Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Just a question for the Department in regards to Item No.1, the
Subdivision Engineering Standards Committee. You know, how much input do you guys provide this
Committee in regards to fire safety, if any? Or are you invited to these meetings?
MR. KAUPALOLO: Chair, if I may? I'm going to defer this again to Lieutenant English who's been
attending. Maybe he'll shed a little more light on this. Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Member Pontanilla, this is in reference to the Smith Development letter, No.1?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Exactly. Yes.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you.
MR. ENGLISH: Yes. I attended several meetings with the Subdivision Committee to try and upgrade Title 18
to reflect our requirements for our Code. The biggest problem that we've been seeing right now is as far
as the cul-de-sac radius it's pretty ... I cannot be enforcing the new, the larger cul-de-sac radius on
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Lanai, Molokai, where our trucks is not there. So it's kind of like a flexible radius that I mean I enforce
it in Lahaina, Central Maui. I'm not going to be enforcing it in Hana, in Upcountry areas because our
larger trucks are not serving that area. So the last meeting that we had with the Subdivision Committee
they were gonna just kind of keep it the way it is so I can ... the Fire Department can require where the
larger turning roadways and turning radius are gonna be required.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Member Pontanilla. Any other questions as it relates to the main motion
on the floor? Seeing none. All those in favor signify by saying aye.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED AYE.
CHAIR MOLINA: All those opposed? Thank you. The Chair will mark it unanimous.

VOTE:

AYES:

Councilmembers Anderson, Carroll, Hokama, Mateo, Pontanilla
and Tavares, Vice-Chair Kane, and Chair Molina.

NOES:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

ABSENT:

None.

EXC.:

Councilmember Johnson.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

Recommending FIRST READING of revised bill.

CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you very much, Members. Thank you, Chief Kaupalolo, Lieutenant English, and
Captain Martin for your participation today. Okay, Members, we'll now go back to the-COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman?
CHAIR MOLINA: --top of the agenda. Member Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Couple things. One I wanted to know if you were filing that item?
CHAIR MOLINA: Yes. I'm sorry. That was to include filing of the item as well. Is there a motion to file or
shall we just go ahead and ...
VICE-CHAIR KANE: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Second.
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CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Motion to file the communication, seconded ... made by Member Kane, seconded
by Member Tavares. All those in ... discussion? Member Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: One quick comment, Chairman. I would just ask in the Committee Report
regarding the recommendation of this Committee regarding the update . . . adopting the updated Fire
Code that reference be made regarding the GPMs and the agriculture category and that is something that
we would look forward that the department may ... would in the future propose some revisions how to
address different requirements within that land use category.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Alright. That will be noted in the Committee Report, Member Hokama. Any other
discussion as it relates to the motion on the floor related to filing of the communication. Seeing none.
All those in favor signify by saying aye.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED AYE.
CHAIR MOLINA: All those opposed? Thank you.

VOTE:

AYES:

Councilmembers Anderson, Carroll, Hokama, Mateo, Pontanilla
and Tavares, Vice-Chair Kane, and Chair Molina.

NOES:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

ABSENT:

None.

EXC.:

Councilmember Johnson.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

Recommending FILING communication.

CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, Members, we are now back to the top of the agenda. We're dealing with Committee
of the Whole Item 2(13), nominations to boards, committees, and commissions. The Committee is in
receipt of a correspondence dated September 9, 2005 and September 12, 2005, both received on
September 13,2005. Standby for a second, Committee Members .... (short pause) . ..
Okay. It's been brought to my attention the Executive Assistant to the Mayor related to this particular
item is currently not here and I guess on his way down. If the Committee has no objections, the Chair
would like to move forward to Committee of the Whole Item 5(7) being that the Mayor's Executive
Assistant is needed to be here for Committee of the Whole Items 2(13) and 2(14). Any objections to
moving on to Committee of the Whole Item 5(7)?
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COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Members.
COW-5(7)

SPECIAL COUNSEL AUTHORIZATION (TRINIDAD K ALCONCEL, ET AL. V.
COUNTY OF MAUl, HAWAII, CIVIL NO. CV05-00280 SPK BMK) (C.c. No. 05-25)

CHAIR MOLINA: Committee of the Whole Item 5(7), special counsel authorization, Trinidad K. Alconcel, et
al. versus County of Maui, Hawaii. The Committee is in receipt of a correspondence dated
September 26, 2005 from the Corporation Counsel's Office requesting consideration of a proposed
resolution entitled "AUTHORIZING THE EMPLOYMENT OF SPECIAL COUNSEL MARR HIPP
JONES & WANG IN TRINIDAD K. ALCONCEL, ET AL. V. COUNTY OF MAUl, CIVIL NO.
CV05-00280 SPK BMK". Purpose of the resolution is to authorize special counsel in the
aforementioned case due to the complexity of litigation issues. At this point, we have from the
Corporation Counsel's Office we have Counselor Cheryl Tipton, as well as from the Police Department,
Chief Nakashima. Good morning.
MS. TIPTON: Good afternoon, Chair, Members of the Committee. As you know from previous visits from me
the County has been sued for violations of Fair Labor Standards Act. We did settle the first initial class
action case. Now Maui and Kauai has been sued in a second round of lawsuits by members of the
Police and Fire Department. The matter that we're taking up now, the Alconcel case, involves the
Police Department. These two actions were brought separately this time instead of together as they all
were in the last case. There are 57 plaintiffs at this time in this particular lawsuit. I'm asking that the
same special counsel be retained to assist the County with these new cases. The contracts would be with
Marr Hipp Pepper [sic] & Wong ... Wang with Steve Nakashima who assisted the County previously
being the lead counsel. Nichole Shimamoto would also be assisting him. They are very familiar with
the operations of the County and I believe they would be . . . offer the most efficient service on this
matter. I hope to take a greater part now that I know more about this particular statute. It is a very
complicated legal statute. However, I don't feel like the Corp. Counsel has either the paralegal or
support staff resources or the space to manage a class action lawsuit of this type which is why I'm
asking for outside counsel. I hope if we have any discussions, we can do it in open Council. If it gets
into strategy, then I would ask that we go into executive session.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you very much, Ms. Tipton. Member Hokama, followed by Member Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Quickly. Thank you, Chair. The earlier case was not a class action case and
that is why we have this new one before us?
MS. TIPTON: It was a class action but FLSA class actions are a little different from the normal class action
suits. In a normal class action suit, everybody is in-COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Right.
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MS. TIPTON: --unless they opt out. In FLSA class action suits, your plaintiffs have to individually opt in and
so they're right if ... they're only in it if they opt in. And it doesn't ... the fact that they don't opt in
does not keep them from bringing a lawsuit later on.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: That is even after a court makes a ruling?
MS. TIPTON: That is correct.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: On the exact same type of case?
MS. TIPTON: That is correct.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: If I am to ask is this case the ... similar in its parameters and its request
from the County, you can answer that in open session?
MS. TIPTON: I think so. It's a matter of public record of what's in the complaint and it is essentially a copycat
case of the previous one. There is different outside counsel. Part of the last agreement was that that
group of counsel wouldn't bring any further lawsuits against the County so we have two different law
firms involved, one from Honolulu and one from Washington, D.C.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay, and my last question. Is this case going before the same venue?
MS. TIPTON: It is in Federal Court right now. The two cases are before different judges and it is not the same
magistrate that heard the last one. There has been some discussion about having it heard before one ...
one judge. This case is ... these cases, the one we have before the Committee at the moment and the
one that you will hear next, are a little bit different. The last ones were everybody was in the same
lawsuit. Most of the people in the last one were from Police. There were about eight that were from the
Fire Department and then three others that were like Parks and Public Works. But these two cases are
actually are divided up so that one only has Police and one only has Fire.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. I'm done. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Member Hokama. Questions from Member Kane in open session.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Chair, and just a follow-up. The agreement from the just finished case you
stated including that the counsels of those individuals are not to participate in future cases of similar
type?
MS. TIPTON: That was one ofthe terms ofthe agreement.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: And so that includes them providing any type of consultation to a different law firm or
an end around, if you will, is there something there that we can just be aware of so that we don't get
them participating indirectly via consultation?
MS. TIPTON: Well, our option would be to go back and enforce the agreement ifthat occurs.
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VICE-CHAIR KANE: You folks have the means of checking up on that to see if that's something that could
occur?
MS. TIPTON: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Okay. Okay. I wanted that on the record. Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Member Kane. Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chair. Tell me if I'm beyond the lines here. How many
individuals does this current case involve?
MS. TIPTON: The A1concel which is before the Committee at this moment involves at this moment 57. That's
not to say that it won't change as possibly new plaintiffs join or in the last case we actually had some
drop out.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So at what point do they lose that option to opt in?
MS. TIPTON: There would be a point set by the court at some point where the joiner of the class would be
finished and no one could join at a later date on this particular action.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So based on the previous case and the number of people involved in this
case, do you have a handle on how many other employees may feel they have a right to bring suit on the
same issue?
MS. TIPTON: Well, I can tell you that the previous case had approximately 111 police officers and this one so
far has 57. I know and maybe Assistant Chief Nakashima, who's with me today, can say if I'm correct
in the numbers. But I know in talking to Chief Phillips recently there were approximately 310
uniformed officers at this point. I'm not clear amongst that number how many would be exempt from
the FLSA requirements because of their management type duties. But ... and, and also it could be that
there would be a few others that have either resigned or even have been terminated, you know, are no
longer employees that could possible fit into the definition of the class. So again, I think we're getting
pretty close to the maximum number but I can't be exact at this point. Does that give you an idea for the

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah. Well, what I'm getting at is, you know, here we are the second
round. Are we going to have a third round? And every time this happens it costs us more money, more
time, and I'm just wondering if there could be like a cost benefit analysis done to see if, you know,
maybe we should look to settling this issue with everybody that has ... that it could apply to.
MS. TIPTON: Yes. We have considered that in the past and we could certainly pursue that option this time. I
know that Chief Phillips and again Assistant Chief Nakashima could maybe speak to this, but I know in
my discussions with Chief Phillips he's not ... he wasn't excited about settling the last one for a variety
of morale issues with this group and I know he's not too excited about rolling over this time either.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah. I can appreciate that because you want everyone to be treated
equally and I think it's unfortunate that officers of the County feel they need to file suit to get what they
feel is their fair share. So I'd be interested in seeing some kind of cost analysis on that if it's possible.
MS. TIPTON: We can work on that.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Member Anderson. Committee will I guess make a request to the
Department to give a cost analysis.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you. Any other questions for Ms. Tipton on this matter? Any ... Chief Nakashima,
any comments you would like to make at this time?
MR. NAKASHIMA: Just that I'm representing the Chief at, you know, this hearing and he's supportive of
Corp. Counsel getting assistance in this case. It will set a lot of precedence for us. We really feel it's
important that we settle it.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Chief. Committee Members, any questions? Member Kane.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Just a final question before your recommendation, Chair, if I may. Ms. Tipton, you
stated earlier that you will be as much as possible trying to take a lead role in this versus a back up role
in the first round?
MS. TIPTON: Well, I'd like to take a more active role in preparing motions or doing depositions or whatever's
necessary. I have a better grasp. I was a novice in the last round so ...
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Well, we want to thank you for your continued work so thank you for that. Chair,
whenever you are ready for your recommendation.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Member Kane. Member Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Yeah, quickly, Chairman. Basically, is this a collective bargaining issue?
And in the future can it be resolved through a collective bargaining agreement?
MS. TIPTON: Unfortunately, no, it is not. It's a separate requirement from collective bargaining. In fact, we
have to calculate what overtime is owed under the collective bargaining agreement and do a separate
calculation of what's required under the Fair Labor Standards Act. We cannot by collective bargaining
weigh any responsibility for compliance with collective bargaining. That is not permitted. Does that
answer your question?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: It wasn't the response I wanted, but ... (laughter) . ..
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MS. TIPTON: Sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Member Hokama. Any other questions related to the matter? Seeing none.
The Chair's recommendation is to approve the resolution authorizing special counsel in this particular
matter.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Second.
CHAIR MOLINA: Moved by Member Kane, seconded by Member Tavares. Any discussion? Seeing none.
All those in favor signify by saying aye?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED AYE.
CHAIR MOLINA: All those opposed? Okay. Thank you, Members. The Chair will mark it unanimous.
VOTE:

AYES:

Councilmembers Anderson, Carroll, Hokama, Mateo, Pontanilla
and Tavares, Vice-Chair Kane, and Chair Molina.

NOES:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

ABSENT:

None.

EXC.:

Councilmember Johnson.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

Recommending ADOPTION of resolution.

CHAIR MOLINA: Members, we have our next item is Committee of the Whole Item 5(8), which is special
counsel authorization, Jack Henry Williams, Jr., et a1. versus County of Maui, Hawaii.
COW-5(8)

SPECIAL COUNSEL AUTHORIZATION (JACK HENRY WILLIAMS, JR., ET AL. V.
COUNTY OF MAUl, HAWAII, CIVIL NO. CV05-00278 DAE LEK) (C.C. No. 05-25)

CHAIR MOLINA: The Committee is in receipt of a correspondence dated September 26, 2005 from the
Corporation Counsel's Office requesting consideration of a proposed resolution entitled
"AUTHORIZING THE EMPLOYMENT OF SPECIAL COUNSEL MARR HIPP JONES & WANG IN
JACK HENRY WILLIAMS, JR., ET AL. V. COUNTY OF MAUl, HAWAII, CIVIL NO. CV05-00278
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DAE LEK". Purpose of the resolution is to authorize special counsel in the aforementioned case due to
the complexity of litigation issues. Again, Ms. Tipton, if you could give us a brief overview of this
matter.
MS. TIPTON: Thank you, Chair Molina, Members of the Committee. Again, this is the second of the two
FLSA lawsuits. Jack Henry Williams, et aI., involves members of the Fire Department. There are
currently 125 plaintiffs who have opted in for this particular lawsuit. Again, I will hope to take an active
role ... more active role but I believe the Corp. Counsel staff does not have adequate support or space to
manage all of the documents that are necessary in this class action lawsuit. I would ask that we be able
to hire Marr Hipp Pepper [sic] & Wang who assisted us previously in an FLSA case and is familiar with
the operations of the County.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Questions, Members? Member Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you, Chairman. Quickly, just one question. Regarding this request,
Corporation Counsel, and the one that the Committee just made a recommendation on, are we talking
about then a total of $80,000 because both resolutions request 40,000 for the same firm with the same
principle or partner, Mr. Nakashima assisting Corporation Counsel. So I just want to know, are we
talking about just 40 or 40 ... (change tape) . .. plus 40 it means 80?
MS. TIPTON: Forty ... four plus forty. Initially, there'll be a lot of discovery required and I'm hoping that the
money won't be used up quickly but I don't want to have to come back too many times to Council. We
have to split it up because they're separate lawsuits and we have separate deductibles under our
insurance. We are trying to pursue coverage issues as you are aware. You previously approved
coverage counsel for these matters.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Then just a quick follow-up, Ms. Tipton. Is the County planning to request
to the court to combine both cases since it's the same case more or less?
MS. TIPTON: I have asked that ... that we consider that issue. We've had one scheduling conference with the
different judges. Currently, we are before even different judges and so I think it would make more sense
to have it before one judge and possibly to combine the cases. I still don't know how that would impact
our insurance coverage but it might be more efficient. I'm not sure that they would allow that the way
without amending the complaints because ... but it's possible. We are exploring it.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. I would just ask that your office continue to apprise our Chair of the
changing situation 'cause again I'm thinking we're able ... we might have been able to save $40,000
myself. But thank you for your comments. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Member Hokama. Member Kane.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: I would ask the question on the other side then because we're looking at this case
having approximately double the amount of plaintiffs that are involved. So just the work that it's gonna
entail regarding the gathering of the facts and the data, is 40,000 enough for this particular one, given
your comments about not wanting to come back too many times, but at the same time not running out of
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money? And we've already heard your arguments for the previous, with the 40,000 should be enough,
but this one, we're talking about double the plaintiffs.
MS. TIPTON: Right. And I know many of you were here for the last lawsuit, and you know, one, I think if we
keep it at increments I can come back and give reports directly to the Council and you have more control
also of what's occurring. That's why I ... I determined to ask for this amount at this point.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Member Kane. Any other questions? Member Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: The attorneys for the firemen as well as the Police Department are the
same attorneys?
MS. TIPTON: Yes. It's the same law firm from Washington, D.C. and the same law firm in Honolulu.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: And the number of employees that are suing the County from the Fire
Department are there anymore employees? I noticed that, you know, on this one here is 135, the
previous one was eight.
MS. TIPTON: Right. It was eight. I should have asked the Chief this morning how many total. I did try to
find that out yesterday but I didn't get a response so I'm not ... I'm not quite sure how many total fire
fighters they have at this point. I'm sorry. I can check on that for the next time. I did try to get the
information.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Member Pontanilla. Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah, just a follow-up on that. I would request the same cost analysis for
Fire as for Police, if you could get a handle on that. I mean apparently management would not qualify?
MS. TIPTON: Right. Certain employees are not covered by the Fair Labor Standards Act and so we don't have
to do the calculations for them. I'll just say that what makes it difficult to determine what the ... we
don't even have an idea of what plaintiffs are asking at this point because a great portion, as you will
recall, was for time that they say they worked that they haven't got ... that benefited the County that
they didn't get paid for. We don't know at this point how much they're claiming. It's not on their
timesheets or they would have gotten paid for it. So this is in excess of what they submitted on their
timesheets for payment. At this point, we'd be guessing a little bit on that but we can do our best at this
point to give you some sort of analysis.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Member Anderson. Any other questions before the Chair makes his
recommendation? Seeing none. Chair will entertain a motion to approve the resolution authorizing
special counsel for this case.
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VICE-CHAIR KANE: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Second.
CHAIR MOLINA: Moved by Member Kane, seconded by Member Tavares. Any discussion? Seeing none.
All those signify by saying aye.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED AYE.
CHAIR MOLINA: All those opposed? Okay. Thank you. Chair marks it unanimous.

VOTE:

AYES:

Councilmembers Anderson, Carroll, Hokama, Mateo, Pontanilla
and Tavares, Vice-Chair Kane, and Chair Molina.

NOES:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

ABSENT:

None.

EXC.:

Councilmember Johnson.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

Recommending ADOPTION of resolution.

MS. TIPTON: Thank you very much.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Ms. Tipton. And for our last two agenda items, first we'll deal with Committee
of the Whole Item 2(13) and we have Mr. DeLeon who's been waiting so patiently. This has to do with
nominations to boards, committees, and commissions.

COW-2(13)

NOMINATIONS TO BOARDS, COMMITTEES, AND COMMISSIONS

(VARIOUS)

(C.c. No. 05-20)

CHAIR MOLINA: The Committee is in receipt of a correspondence dated September 9, 2005 and
September 12, 2005, both received on September 13, 2005 from the Mayor's Office requesting
consideration of the following nominations to boards, committees, and commissions. First is to the
Affirmative Action Advisory Council, Larry Laird replacing Brenda Plant for a term expiring on
March 31, 2006; to the Board of Water Supply, Carl Holmberg replacing Michele McLean for a term
expiring on March 31, 2009; to the Liquor Control Commission, Mary Cabuslay replacing Edwin Vila
for a term expiring on March 31, 2010; and to the Maui County Grants Review Committee, Christina
Paleka replacing Punahele Alcon for a term expiring on March 31, 2007; and the Council must approve
or disapprove these nominations by November 12, 2005 or the nominees will be deemed approved. So
- 42-

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE
Council of the County of Maui

October 4, 2005

at this point we have Mr. DeLeon from the Mayor's Office to give us a brief overview of the matter.
Mr. DeLeon.
MR. DELEON: Thank you Mr. Chairman. Basically, these are replacements and these folks have all applied
for the positions that they're being appointed to.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Members, any questions or comments regarding the appointments?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Your recommendation?
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Members, first of all, any request for separation of the matter? Seeing no request for
separation, the Chair will entertain in one sweeping motion the approval of all I guess replacements to
the various committees or commissions.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Second.
CHAIR MOLINA:
discussion?

Okay.

It's been moved by Member Hokama, seconded by Member Tavares.

Any

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman?
CHAIR MOLINA: Member Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I would speak in favor of the nomination of Mary Cabuslay of Lanai to
serve on the Lanai, excuse me, to serve on the County's Liquor Control Commission. Mrs. Cabuslay
has been a long outstanding resident of our community. She has participated in the past in many other
important boards and commissions from Lanai on County boards and State boards. I would ask the
Members to please support her nomination. I believe she'll do a outstanding job in representing not only
our interest of Lanai but the electoral interest of the County.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Member Hokama. Any other discussion as it relates to the motion on
the floor? Seeing none. All those in favor signify by saying aye.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED AYE.
CHAIR MOLINA: All those opposed? Okay. Thank you. Chair will mark it unanimous.
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VOTE:

AYES:

Councilmembers Carroll, Hokama,
Tavares, and Chair Molina.

NOES:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

ABSENT:

None.

EXC.:

Mateo,

Pontanilla

and

Councilmembers Anderson and Johnson, and Vice-Chair Kane.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

Recommending APPROVAL of Larry Laird to the Affirmative
Action Advisory Council; Carl Holmberg to the Board of Water
Supply; Mary Cabuslay to the Liquor Control Commission; and
Christina Paleka to the Maui County Grants Review Committee.

CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. We have one more item which is Committee of the Whole 2(14), nominations to
boards, committees, and commissions, Urban Design Review Board.
COW-2(14)

NOMINATIONS TO BOARDS, COMMITTEES, AND COMMISSIONS (URBAN DESIGN
REVIEW BOARD) (CC No. 05-20)

CHAIR MOLINA: Committee is in receipt of a correspondence dated September 19, 2005, received on
September 20, 2005, from the Mayor's Office requesting consideration of the nomination of Bryan
Maxwell to replace Christopher Hart on the Urban Design Review Board for a term expiring March 31,
2010. Council must approve or disapprove this nomination by November 19,2005 or the nominee will
be deemed approved. Mr. DeLeon.
MR. DELEON: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. This is for the alternate position on the Urban Design Review
Board. It's not the main landscape architect, a required position, but it is also a required position. It was
very difficult finding an architect . . . landscape architect that wasn't absolutely overwhelmed with
business that could take the time and do this. I mean out of deference to our existing member on the
board, Mr. Maxwell agreed to serve on this alternate position.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. DeLeon. Members, any questions for Mr. DeLeon as it relates to
the proposed nomination? Seeing none. All those in favor ... the Chair actually will first make a
recommendation for the motion to approve the nomination of Bryan Maxwell to replace Christopher
Hart on the Urban Design Review Board for a term ending March 31, 2010. Is there a motion to
approve?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: So moved.
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CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. It's been moved by Member Tavares. Is there a second?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Second.
CHAIR MOLINA: Seconded by Member Hokama. Any discussion? Seeing none. All those in favor signify
by saying aye.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED AYE.
CHAIR MOLINA: All those opposed? Okay. Thank you, Members. Chair will mark that unanimous as well.

VOTE:

AYES:

Councilmembers Carroll, Hokama,
Tavares, and Chair Molina.

NOES:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

ABSENT:

None.

EXC.:

Mateo,

Pontanilla

and

Councilmembers Anderson and Johnson, and Vice-Chair Kane.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

Recommending APPROVAL of Bryan Maxwell as an alternate to
the Urban Design Review Board.

CHAIR MOLINA: And prior to ending our proceedings, the Chair would like to recognize from the
Corporation Counsel's Office, Traci Fujita Villarosa, who was ... come in to sit in on this matter. Chair
would like to thank everyone for their participation for today. We believe it was a very productive and
interesting meeting to say the least. Thank you all for your dedication to duty. Any announcements?
Seeing none. It is 11 :30, Members. This Committee of the Whole meeting for October 4, 2005 is now
adjourned. . .. (gavel) . ..

ADJOURN: 11:30 a.m.
APPROVED BY:

Transcribed by: Clarita Balala

cow:min:051004
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